GHANA



GAZETTE

Published by Authority

No. 92

FRIDAY, 13TH NOVEMBER

1970

CONTENTS

	rage
Notice of Publication of Official Bulletins	730
Balance Sheet as at 30th June, 1970—Bank of Ghana	732
The National Weekly Lotto Results	735
Prison Visiting Committee, 1970—Eastern Region	735
Public Announcement Notice—Ministry of Education	735
Notice to Medical and Dental Practitioners who have never registered under the Medical and Dental Act, 1959 (No. 36 of 1959)	735
Inter-African Universities Scholarship Programme: Forestry, Dentistry, Veterinary Medicine, Librarianship and B.A. (French) 1971-72 Awards—Scholarships Secretariat	736
Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Plan—Jamaica, Trinidad and Tobago and	130
Nigeria 1971–72 Awards—Scholarships Secretariat	736
Confederation of British Industries—Offer of Scholarships for Practical Engineering Training in Britain—Scholarships Secretariat	737
Postgraduate Scholarships offered by Commission for Educational Exchange between the United States of America and Ghana (Fulbright Commission)—Scholarships	
Secretariat	737
Vacancies for Learner Laboratory Technician—Ministry of Agriculture—Fisheries Division—Fishery Research Unit	738
Vacancy for Controller of Examinations—Public Services Commission	738
Vacancy for Expediter/Shipping Officer—Volta River Authority	739
Vacancies for Senior Lecturer or Lecturer in Botany (Plant Physiology) and Lecturer/ Assistant Lecturer in Microbiology—University of Science and Technology,	and I
Kumasi—Faculty of Science	739
Vacancy for Professor/Associate Professor—University of Science and Technology, Kumasi—Faculty of Art	740
Distribution List of Officers in the Administrative Class as at 1st November, 1970	740

NOTICE OF PUBLICATION OF OFFICIAL BULLETINS

LOCAL GOVERNMENT NO. 48

is published today, price 18Np.

Summary of Contents	
General	Page
Amendment—Amendment to Local Government Bulletin No. 49 of 8th November, 1969	577
Taxi Drivers Examination Board—Accra-Tema City Council	577
Imposition of Rates	578
Bye-laws	
The Tepa Local Council (Lorry Park) Bye-laws, 1970	580
The Tepa Local Council (Slaughter-house) Bye-laws, 1970	581
The Tepa Local Council (Cattle Pounds) Bye-laws, 1970	582
The Tepa Local Council (Removal of Night-soil) Bye-laws, 1970	583
The Tepa Local Council (Control of Buildings) Bye-laws, 1970	584
The Ashanti-Akim Management Committee (Palm-wine Sellers) Bye-laws, 1970	585
LAND AND CONCESSIONS NO. 22	
is published today, price 20Np.	
Summary of Contents	
Administration of Lands Act, 1962 (Act 123)—Notice of Occupation and Use of Land	305
List of Instruments registered at Accra during the month of November, 1969	308
COMMEDIAL AND INDIGENIAL NO. OF	
COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL NO. 85	
is published today, price 60Np.	
Summary of Contents	
General	
Collective Bargaining Certificate—Health Services Workers' Union	2964
Extension of Collective Agreement—Construction and Building Trades Workers' Union	
Signing PowersChana Commercial Bank	2964
Savings for the week ended Saturday, 7th November, 1970—Ghana Savings Bank	2966
O 1 CTY . TARTE M. W.	2967
Sale of Unentered Articles—Fema Port Sale of Unentered Articles—Kotoka International Airport	2968
Sale of Seized Articles—Kotoka International Airport	2991
Sale of Seized Afficies—Rotoka International Airport	2995
Companies	
Companies entitled to commence business under the Companies Code, 1963	2996
Cessation of Business of External Company—Jeafan Limited	
Alteration in the registered particulars of External Companies—Texaco Africa Limited	3001
- The control of the	3001

Tenders Tenders for Various Contracts—Public Works Department Tenders for the Supply of Chemical Fertilizer, 1970-71—Ministry of Agriculture Tenders for Erection of High Level Steel Tanks—Ghana Water and Sewerage Corporation Tenders for Lighting Installation at Mile 18—Tema—Ghana Water and Sewerage Corporation Tenders for the Construction of 50,000-gallon HY-RIB Concrete Tank at Adukrom—Ghana Water and Sewerage Corporation Tenders for the Improvement of Roads—Western Regional Organisation	
Tenders for the Supply of Chemical Fertilizer, 1970-71—Ministry of Agriculture Tenders for Erection of High Level Steel Tanks—Ghana Water and Sewerage Corporation Tenders for Lighting Installation at Mile 18—Tema—Ghana Water and Sewerage Corporation Tenders for the Construction of 50,000-gallon HY-RIB Concrete Tank at Adukrom—Ghana Water and Sewerage Corporation	Page
Tenders for Erection of High Level Steel Tanks—Ghana Water and Sewerage Corporation Tenders for Lighting Installation at Mile 18—Tema—Ghana Water and Sewerage Corporation Tenders for the Construction of 50,000-gallon HY-RIB Concrete Tank at Adukrom—Ghana Water and Sewerage Corporation	. 3002
ration Tenders for Lighting Installation at Mile 18—Tema—Ghana Water and Sewerage Corporation Tenders for the Construction of 50,000-gallon HY-RIB Concrete Tank at Adukrom—Ghana Water and Sewerage Corporation	. 3008
Corporation	. 3009
Ghana Water and Sewerage Corporation	e . 3009
Tenders for the Improvement of Roads—Western Regional Organisation	. 3010
	. 3010

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30th JUNE, 1970 BANK OF GHANA

	GIANA GAZETTE, ISIN THE	
NÇ 5.708.765 11,825,504 46,957,222 61,140,989	125,632,480 62,204,874 19,411,236 15,000,000 1 192,586,852 5,551,624 50,932,062 16,952,348	10,000,000 10,000,000
NC wind (Call, 24,382,947 22,574,275	=	J. H. FRIMPONG-ANSAH Governor AR r section 5 of the Bank of nendment) Decree, 1967)
GOLD HOLDING OF SPECIAL DRAWING RIGHTS Current Account, Money at Call, Treasury and Other Bills Government Securities GOVERNMENT SECURITIES AND OTHER BILLS	TOTAL CURRENCY ASSETS COVER GOVERNMENT SECURITIES AND OFFIER BILLS FORTION ASSETS Balance with Banks abroad, Money at Call and Treasury Bills LOANS AND ADVANCES FIXED ASSETS OTHER ASSETS GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION UNDER LONG-TERM CREDITS CREDITS CREDITS	Aria Aria (Aria Aria (Aria Aria (Aria Aria (Aria Aria (Aria (Aria) (Aria (Ari
0	YOU YE OUG G	RE DED 30TH 000 NET P (Before
1969 NC 5,708,765 30,784,828 45,750,829	109,138,866 80,782,555 80,782,555 5,463,021 15,000,000 15,000,000 6,059,466 55,369,999 11,153,053	E. N. MOORE Director T,500,000 NG7,500,000
NÇ 125,632,480	253,965,744 253,965,744 24,682,822 5,551,624 50,932,062 16,952,348	RESERVE FUND 1,250,000 Bank of Ghana Act, 1963 Bank of Ghana Act, 1963 RESERVE FUND 1,250,000 RESERVE FUND RESERVE FUND 1,250,000 RESERVE FUND 1,250,000 RESERVE FUND RESERVE FUND 1,250,000 RESERVE FUND RESERVE FUND 1,250,000 RESERVE FUND RESERVE FUND RESERVE FUND 1,250,000 RESERVE FUND RES
NC 118,176,941 7,455,539	(O= -1	IND LOSS ACCIND hana Act, 1963 FENT OF GRANA hana Act, 1963
::	PAL CURRENCY LIABILITIES FIND FOOTS GOVERNMENT GOVERNMENT Bankers Other Accounts, including Reserves for Contingencies HER LIABILITIES ABILITIES UNDER GUARANTEES ABILITIES UNDER LONG-TERM EXTER ABILITIES UNDER DOCUMENTARY CR	SSAN PROFIT A PROFIT A FAL RESERVE FU of the Bank of Gi fute Bank of Gi cree, 1967) cree, 1967)
IN CIRCULATION Notes Coins	TOTAL CURRENCY LIABILITIES CAPITAL GENERAL RESERVE FUND DIPOSITS GOVERNMENT OF GHARA GOVERNMENT OF GHARA TO, 31,829,900 79,364,66. Other Accounts, including Reserves for Contingencies OTHER LIABILITIES LIABILITIES UNDER GUARANTEES LIABILITIES UNDER LONG-TERM EXTERNAL CREDITS LIABILITIES UNDER DOCUMENTARY CREDITS	H. E. ASSAN Chief Accountant PROFIT AND LOSS AC TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE FUND (Under section 5 of the Bank of Ghana Act, 1963 (Amendment) Decree, 1967) BALANCE PAYABLE TO THE GOVERNMENT OF GHANA (Under section 5 of the Bank of Ghana Act, 1963 (Amendment) Decree, 1967)
1969 NC 101,791,732 7,347,134	109,138.866 4,000.000 5,304,397 17,116,087 88,385,613 63,706,992 77,775,596 6,059,466 55,369,999 11,153,053	937,500 T 6,562,500 B 6,562,500 B

REPORT OF THE AUDITORS TO THE BANK OF GHANA UNDER SECTION 40 (1) OF THE BANK OF GHANA ACT, 1963

We have examined the above Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account with the books and records of the Bank. We have obtained all other information and explanations which we considered necessary. The profit for the year has been ascertained under section 5 of the Bank of Ghana Act, 1963 (Amendment) Decree, 1967, after making transfers to reserves for contingencies, out of which provision has been made for diminution in the value of assets and, on this basis, the accounts give, in our opinion, a correct view of the state of affairs of the Bank at 30th June, 1970 and of the results of its operations for the year.

ACCRA, 11th September, 1970.

1

PANNEL FITZPATRICK & Co. Chartered Accountants/Auditors

1070	2
Ö	
5	
E)
-	1
TINE TINE	
×	
9	١
7	١
FNDED	
Ţ	ļ
Ω	
VEAR	ļ
5	
THE	
FOD	
Ü	
F	
2	
5	5
ζ	į
ACCOL	
7	,
000	į
C)
CENT OF	,
4	Ç
PPORT	
0	į
A	

NE 20,735,478.36			20,735,478.36
NG 1,390,994.04 3,429,895.26 3,779,632.54 29,066.43 9,773,481.68 45,000.00 13,233.13 5,022.04	457,809.02		457,809.02
NØ 2,309,657.49 2,536,175.81	259,376.42 18,318.99 67,576.12 7,449.66 105,087.83	1,287,924.06 46,458.81 118,485.51 9,268.10 32,371.15 3,193.92 31,696.58 57,353.33 2,486.46	27,157.12 5,967.76 18,503.34 14,916.56 243,635.32 1112.476.61 9,769.40 928.58
	:::::	:::::::	ž
1 111111 1111	:::::	:::::::	: : : : : : : : : : :
i ::::i	:::::		: : : : : : : : : : : :
	: : : :		
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Equi	9:4:::::: H H	
Incore Commission Discount Exchange Rent Interest Receivable Less Interest Payable Profit on Sale of Stocks Dividends Received Miscellaneous Assets Disposal	Deduct: EXPENDITURE ON PREMISES, FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT Rent, Rates and Insurance Electricity and Water Repairs and Renewals Police Guard Depreciation	GINERAL ADMINISTRATION Salaries and Allowances Provident Fund Contributions Social Security Fund Directors' Fees and Allowances Travel Outside Ghana Travel Inside Ghana Motor Running Expenses Printing and Stationery Telephone and Pore Box Box Parizle	Postages and Cables Gazettes and Publications Gazettes and Publications Medical Expenses Depreciation—Motor Vehicles Agency Fees and Currency Issue Expenses Expenses on Foreign Government Stocks Advertising Carried forward
NC 14,404,679	9		14,404,679
1969 NC 1,127,811 2,459,261 2,958,100 77,424 7,694,365 47,938 22,500 13,784 3,496	405,260		405,260
NC 12,052,116 4,357,751	114,594 22,020 55,758 3,512 209,376	1,106,588 41,800 106,141 4,545 34,021 4,564 22,632 32,241	24,339 8,962 23,276 8,180 108,610 78,677 12,439

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 ni JUNE, 1970—contd.

NG NG NG NG NG NG NG NG					
405,266 14,404,679 Givening and Sundries Fees Auditors Fees Auditors Fees Loss on Exchange Loss o		NC	SN.	SZ.	N _Z
1,580,000 Provision for Extension of Markers Arch November Arch 1963 November Arch 1960 November Arch 1			: : : :	457,809.02	20,735,478.36
Addition of Exception			AL ADMINISTRATICN—contid,		
1,580,000 Provision for Restruce Properties Properties Provision for Restruce Provision for Provision for Provision for Purises Provisio	0,811			00 %	
1,580,052 2,085,312 Training Grants Department of the Property of the Property	31,040			38	
1,680,052	Pio,oi		: : : : : :	8	
1,680,052 1,2319,347 Training Grants 1,4100.071 1,4100.071 1,4100.071 1,4100.071 1,4100.071 1,41				3 3	
1,680,052 1,68	9300		y	r :	
1,298,230 Net Operational Profit Debts (Overdue Bills) 18, 1,201,443 13,520,810 Net Profit Before Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts (Overdue Bills) 18, 1,201,443 13,520,810 Net Profit Before Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts (Overdue Bills) 13, 1,201,443 1,201,443 Arbodesian Stock 1,201,443 1,302,250 Devaluation Losses written off 2,000,000 1,598,290 Devaluation Losses written off 2,000,000 1,992,520 Net Profit Before Allocations 1,000,000 1,992,520 Net Robert Before Allocations 1,000,000 1,992,520 Provision for Exension of Accta Premises 1,000,000 1,902,000 Provision for Exension of Accta Premises 1,000,000 1,902,000 Provision for Credit Insurance Scheme 1,000,000 1,000,000 Provision for Credit Insurance Scheme 1,000,000 1,000,000 Provision for Staff Housing Scheme 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,0					
1,319,367 Nit Operational Propert 1,319,367 Nit Operation for Bad and Doubtful Debts (Overdue Bills) 1,201,443 Add Over-Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts (Overdue Bills) 1,201,443 Add Over-Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts (Overdue Bills 1,201,443 1,201,441 1,201,443 1,201,44	West sont			7,243,409.11	2 703 278 13
1,201,443 Add Over-Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts (Overdue Bills) 13,520,810 Ner Propert Betore Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts (Overdue Bills) 13,520,810 Doubtful Debts 12,503.21 Doubtful Debts 12,503.21 Dismissed and Resigned Staff 11,922,520 Devaluation Losses written off 1,598,290 Devaluation Losses written off 1,598,290 Devaluation Contrary Replacement 11,922,520 Provision for Currency Replacement 11,922,520 Provision for Currency Replacement 1,000,000.00 Provision for Credit Insurance Scheme 1,000,000.00 1,000,0		12,319,367	NIT OPERATIONAL PROFIT		18.032.200.23
13,520,810 Net Propert Before Provision for Bad and Doubsteul Debts Doublet! Bad and Doubsteul Debts Doublet! Bad and Doubsteul Debts Doublet! Bad and Doubsteul Debts Doublets Do		1,201,443	Add Over-Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts (Overdue Bills)		201,644.72
Document		13,520,810	NET PROFIT REMBE PROVISION FOR RAD AND DOLIBERGII DEPE		10 722 044 05
BAD AND DOUBTEUL DEBTS Long-dated Bills Long-					10,420,044,70
New Procession Stock 1,598,290 Devaluation Losses written off 1,598,290	1				
11,922.520 Devaluation Losses written off 1,598,290 Others 1,598,290 Others Oth	48 634			3 2	
Others	8 230		:	7 2	
1,598,290 Devaluation Losses written off 1,598,290 Devaluation Losses written off 1,598,290 Devaluation Losses written off 1,922,520 Ner Provision for Currency Replacement 11,922,520 Provision for Extension of Accra Premises 1,000,000	905-15		: : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :	5	
1,598,290 Devaluation Losses written off 1,1,922,520 NET PROFIT BEFORE ALLOCATIONS 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 1	oraciu.			506,632.22	
11,922,520 Net Profit Before Allocations Less Allocations Provision for Currency Replacement Provision for Extension of Accra Premises Provision for Extension of Office Buildings, A.D.B. Provision for Extension of Bank Buildings, A.D.B. Provision for Credit Insurance Scheme Development Reserve Company Provision for Purchase of Shares and Debentures in Export Promotion Provision for Purchase of Scheme Fund Company Contingency Reserve 100,000.00 150,000.00 150,000.00 150,000.00 150,000.00 150,000.00 150,000.00 150,000.00 150,000.00 150,000.00 150,000.00 150,000.00 150,000.00 150,000.00	1,500,000	1 598 290	Damington Loces uniten off	00 000	
Less Allocations Less Allocations Less Allocations Provision for Currency Replacement Provision for Extension of Accra Premises Provision for Extension of Office Buildings, A.D.B. Provision for Renovation of Bank Buildings, A.D.B. Provision for Renovation of Bank Buildings Provision for Credit Insurance Scheme Company Company Provision for Purchase of Shares and Debentures in Export Promotion Company Provision for Staff Housing Scheme Fund Contingency Reserve 127,212.73 PROVISION UNDER SECTION 5 OF THE BANK OF GHANA ACT, 1963 NGII		a contact of		00.000,000	1,006,632,22
Provision for Create Premises Provision for Extension of Accra Premises Provision for Extension of Accra Premises Provision for Group Housing Scheme Provision for Erection of Office Buildings, A.D.B. Provision for Renovation of Bank Buildings Provision for Renovation of Bank Buildings Provision for Credit Insurance Scheme Development Reserve Company Provision for Purchase of Shares and Debentures in Export Promotion Company Provision for Staff Housing Scheme Fund Contingency Reserve 127,212.73 PROFETS BEFORE DIVISION UNDER SECTION 5 OF THE BANK OF GHANA ACT, 1963 NGIL			Net Profit Remar All Controls		27 212 752 71
Provision for Currency Replacement 1,000,000 .00 1,000,000 .00 1,000,000 .00			Less Allocations		C1 : 277 (177 (17
Provision for Extension of Accra Premises 1,000,000 00 Provision for Group Housing Scheme 1,	1		Provision for Currency Replacement	900,000.00	The second
Provision for Group Housing Scheme Provision for Erection of Office Buildings, A.D.B. Provision for Renovation of Bank Buildings Provision for Renovation of Bank Buildings Development Reserve Company Company Contingency Reserve Contingency Provision tunder section 5 of the Bank of Ghana Act, 1963 NQL	750,000		Provision for Extension of Accra Premises	1,000,000.00	
Provision for Erection of Office Buildings, A.D.B. Provision for Renovation of Bank Buildings	750,000		Provision for Group Housing Scheme	E	
Provision for Renovation of Bank Buildings	1		Provision for Erection of Office Buildings, A.D.B.	1,000,000.00	
Provision for Credit Insurance Scheme Development Reserve Provision for Purchase of Shares and Debentures in Export Promotion Company Provision for Staff Housing Scheme Fund Contingency Reserve 4,422,520 Prof. 1963 Oct. 1963	100,000		Provision for Renovation of Bank Buildings	200,000.00	
Development Reserve Provision for Purchase of Shares and Debentures in Export Promotion Company Company Contingency Reserve 4,422,520 NC7,500,000 PROFIT BEFORE DIVISION UNDER SECTION 5 OF THE BANK OF GHANA ACT, 1963 NGI	1		Provision for Credit Insurance Scheme	250,000.00	
Provision for Purchase of Shares and Debentures in Export Promotion Company Provision for Staff Housing Scheme Fund Contingency Reserve 4,422,520 NC7,500,000 PROFIT Before Division under Section 5 of the Bank of Ghana Act, 1963 NGI	2,000,000		Development Reserve	3,600,000.00	
Contingency Reserve 4,422,520 PROFIT BEFORE DIVISION UNDER SECTION 5 OF THE BANK OF GHANA ACT, 1963 Company 120,000.00 127,212.73 NGT	1				
4,422,520 Contingency Reserve 4,422,520 Roeft Before Division under section 5 of the Bank of Ghana Act, 1963 NGT, 500,000			Company	100,000.00	
4,422,520 Contingency Reserve 4,422,520 NC7,500,000 PROFIT BEFORE DIVISION UNDER SECTION 5 OF THE BANK OF GHANA ACT, 1963 NG1	175,000		Provision for Staff Housing Scheme Fund	150,000.00	
PROFIT BEFORE DIVISION UNDER SECTION 5 OF THE BANK OF GHANA ACT, 1963	647,520		Contingency Reserve	127,212.73	
PROFIT BEFORE DIVISION UNDER SECTION 5 OF THE BANK OF GHANA ACT, 1963		4,422,520			1,221,212,13
	Z		PROFIT BEFORE DIVISION UNDER SECTION 5 OF THE BANK OF GHANA ACT, 1963	2	000'000'0121

THE NATIONAL WEEKLY LOTTO RESULTS

It is hereby certified that a National Weekly Lotto Draw was held on Saturday, 7th November, 1970 in accordance with the provisions of the National Weekly Lotto Act, 1961 and the Regulations published thereunder and that the following numbers were drawn in successive order:

72 - 36 - 58 - 62 - 29

V. O. HUTCHISON

Director of National Lotteries

PRISON VISITING COMMITTEE, 1970 EASTERN REGION

It is hereby notified for general information that under section 51 of the Prisons Act, 1963 (Act 221) the Minister of the Interior has appointed the following persons to be visitors of the prisons indicated for the year 1970:—

Prison						Visitors
AKUSE			11	 	. 1.	Mr. J. K. G. Gyimah
					2.	Mr. R. Y. B. Karikari
					3.	Mr. C. T. Sappor
						Mr. E. D. Nimo
					5.	Nene Padi Keteku Akrobettoe III.
Koforidua				 	 . 1.	Mr. A. Okyere-Twum
					2.	Mr. I. K. Debrah
				3.	Mr. M. M. Y. Boateng	
			4.	Rev. T. A. Kumi		
				-		Nana Frempong Mopose II.
NSAWAM				 	 . 1.	Mr. A. Okyere-Twum
					2,	Mr. Y. Sese
					3.	Mr. V. G. N. Kemevor
					4.	Mr. P. A. Osei
					5.	Miss Gladys A. Boateng.

MINISTRY OF EDUCATION PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT NOTICE

The Ministry of Education wishes to announce that Owusu-Agyekum Secondary School, Jachie, has been merged with the Pramso Secondary School and renamed Jachie-Pramso Secondary School.

NOTICE TO MEDICAL AND DENTAL PRACTITIONERS WHO HAVE NEVER REGISTERED UNDER THE MEDICAL AND DENTAL ACT, 1959 (No. 36 OF 1959)

Medical and Dental Practitioners who have never registered under the Medical and Dental Act, 1959 (No. 36 of 1959) and who are practising medicine or dentistry in Ghana are reminded that such practice is an offence under section 23 of the Medical and Dental Act, 1959 punishable on conviction by a fine not exceeding two hundred new cedis with a further amount of twenty new cedis a day during the continuance of the offence, or to imprisonment for a term not exceeding twelve months or to both such fine and imprisonment:

In order to avoid prosecution every such unregistered practitioner is advised to submit to-

The Registrar,
Medical and Dental Board,
P.O. Box M.44,
Accra.

not later than 14th December, 1970 the following:-

- (a) Name in full (BLOCK LETTERS)
- (b) Address

- (c) Nationality
-(d) Degree or Diploma (Photostat Copy)
 - (e) Evidence of Medical or Dental Schools or Colleges at which studies were undertaken for qualifications.
 - (f) Most recent Certificate or Registration in the country, state or province in which qualifications were granted.
 - (g) Documentary evidence of professional experience acquired since qualifying.
 - (h) Certified copies of translations of Degree or Diploma and of most recent certificate of registration and Testimonials where these documents are not in the English Language.

DR. P. M. J. PHILLIPS

for Registrar, Medical and Dental Board

SCHOLARSHIPS SECRETARIAT

INTER-AFRICAN UNIVERSITIES SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAMME: FORESTRY, DENTISTRY, VETERINARY MEDICINE. LIBRARIANSHIP AND B.A. (FRENCH) 1971-72 AWARDS

A number of awards for degree courses in Forestry, Dentistry, Veterinary Medicine and Librarianship and B.A. (Hons.) French are being made under the Inter-African Universities Scholarship Programme of the Association of African Universities. These awards, tenable at African Universities, ommence in October, 1971-72 academic year.

2. Applications are invited from suitably qualified Ghanaians who will not have reached their twenty-seventh birthday by 1st October, 1971.

Qualifications:

- (a) Forestry—at University of Ibadan, Nigeria. Candidates must have passed in at least five subjects, including English Language and Mathematics at G.C.E. "O" Level with two of either Physics, Mathematics, Chemistry, Botany or Zoology at "A" Level.
- (b) Dentistry—at University of Lagos, Nigeria and Lovanium University, Congo-Kinshasa. Candidates must have passed in at least five subjects, including English Language, Mathematics and French at G.C.E. "O" Level and two "A" Level subjects selected from Chemistry, Physics, Botany or Biology.
- (c) Veterinary Medicine—at the University of East Africa, Nairobi and Ahmadu Bello University, Zaria, Nigeria and Khartoum University. Candidates must have passed in at least five subjects at G.C.E. "O" Level with two "A" Level passes in Physics, Chemistry, Botany, Zoology (or Biology).
- (d) Librarianship—at Ahmadu Bello University, Zaria, Nigeria. Candidates must be graduates who must be first degree holders and who will take Librarianship as a career.
- (e) Licentiate: B.A. (Hons.) Degree—at Dakar, Abidjan and Yaounde Universities. Candidates must have passed in at least five subjects at G.C.E. "O" Level including French and English Language and two "A" Level subjects in French and one other language.
- 3. Students who already possess the "A" Level Certificates are eligible.

Applications.—Preliminary application should be by letter confirming qualification as indicated above and giving details of G.C.E. marks obtained. Letters which should be marked IAU/Forestry, IAU/Dentistry, IAU/Veterinary, IAU/Library Studies, IAU/Licentiate as the case may be should reach:—

The Registrar, Scholarships Secretariat, P.O. Box_M.75, Accra.

not later than 16th November, 1970.

SCHOLARSHIPS SECRETARIAT

COMMONWEALTH SCHOLARSHIP AND FELLOWSHIP PLAN—JAMAICA, TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO AND NIGERIA 1971-72 AWARDS

Applications are invited from suitably qualified Ghanaians for the above awards which are intended for men of high intellectual promise who may be expected to make a significant contribution to their own countries on their return from studies abroad.

The awards, which are normally of two years' duration, are for postgraduate study and research in Universities and other centres of higher learning in Jamaica, Trinidad and Tobago and Nigeria.

Qualifications:

- (i) Candidates must not have reached their 35th birthday by 1st October, 1971.
 - (ii) Candidates must hold an Honours degree from an approved University with not less than Second Class (Upper Division) or have in at least three years from graduation exhibited some capacity for further study and research.

Applications:

- (i) Qualified candidates are invited to apply for preliminary application forms describing in some detail the study and/or research they plan to undertake if successful.
- (ii) Candidates serving in Government Departments or in other Public bodies must pass their applications through their Heads of Department.
- (iii) Applicants should state *clearly* whether it is the Jamaica, Trinidad and Tobago or the Nigerian awards for which application is being made.
- (iv) Candidates who are under Bond or any similar obligations will be ineligible.
- (v) Applications must reach the Registrar of Scholarships, P.O. Box M.75, Accra, not later than 25th November, 1970.

SCHOLARSHIPS SECRETARIAT

CONFEDERATION OF BRITISH INDUSTRIES—OFFER OF SCHOLARSHIPS FOR PRACTICAL ENGINEERING TRAINING IN BRITAIN

Applications are invited from suitably qualified Ghanaian citizens, not more than 35 years of age, for scholarships to provide practical engineering training in a number of industrial fields.

Awards are in two categories:-

Accra.

Type A—for recent graduates in Engineering 18-24 months' practical training.

Type C—for qualified Engineers with at least five years' experience. Advanced training in a specialized field 4-12 months.

The Awards provide tax-free allowance of-

and of suffering sure of the character of the character of

Type A-B.—£816 per annum with passages paid

Type C.—£1,000 per annum, the scholar providing his own passages.

Preliminary applications, giving age, qualifications and experience and indicating the particular fields of training required should be forwarded not later than 2nd December, 1970 to:—

The Registrar of Scholarships, Scholarships Secretariat, P.O. Box M.75,

Note.—Candidates employed in Government Departments or State undertakings must pass their applications through their Head of Department. Candidates from the private sector are advised to consult their employers before making applications.

SCHOLARSHIPS SECRETARIAT

POSTGRADUATE SCHOLARSHIPS OFFERED BY COMMISSION FOR EDUCATIONAL EXCHANGE BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA AND GHANA

(Fulbright Commission)

Applications are invited from suitably qualified Ghanaians for postgraduate scholarships at Universities in the United States during the academic year 1971-72. Scholarships are for graduates in the HUMANITIES, ARTS AND SOCIAL SCIENCES.

- (1) Candidates must be citizens of Ghana.
- (2) Must not have reached their 36th birthday by October 31, 1970.

- (3) Must be graduates with first class or second class (upper) degrees.
- (4) Preference will be given to those who have not previously studied in the United States.
- (5) Application should be by letter giving full name and address, date of birth, details of educational record from Secondary School onwards and of employment since graduation. Applicants should give an outline in not more than 300 words of the study project which they have in mind. Applications marked U.S.S./71 should reach the Commission for Educational Exchange between the United States of America and Ghana, P.O. Box 2288, Accra, not later than November 20, 1970.
- Notes: (a) Applicants employed by Government, Educational Institutions or State undertakings should forward their applications through their Head of Department.
 - (b) Candidates must declare Bonds or any other obligations.

MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE—FISHERIES DIVISION—FISHERY RESEARCH UNIT

VACANCIES FOR LEARNER LABORATORY TECHNICIAN

Applications are invited from suitably qualified persons to undergo a three-year course of training leading to the appointment as Technical Officer (Laboratory).

The course will be partly undertaken in the laboratory and on board research vessels at sea.

- 1. Qualifications.—Candidates, who must be citizens of Ghana, must—
 - (a) possess the G.C.E. "O" Level or its equivalent with passes in English and Mathematics, and one or more of the following subjects: General Science, Biology, Physics and Chemistry.
 - (b) Aptitude for sea-going is essential.
 - Age limit: Between 16 and 25 years.
- 2. Allowances.—NØ510, NØ540 and NØ570 per annum.
- 3. Selected candidates will be bonded to complete the course and serve for five years in the Fishery Research Unit.
- 4. Candidates who successfully complete the course will be eligible for appointment as Technical Officer (Laboratory) on salary ranges 29, 35, 40 (i.e. NØ792-NØ1,428).

Technical Officers have prospects of promotion to the grade of Laboratory Superintendent and thereafter to higher specialized posts in the Unit depending upon aptitude and ability.

5. Applications stating qualifications should reach the Acting Project Co-Manager, Fishery Research Unit, P.O. Box B.62, Tema Community 2 by 14th November, 1970.

PUBLIC SERVICES COMMISSION

VACANCY FOR CONTROLLER OF EXAMINATIONS

Applications are invited from suitably qualified candidates for appointment to the pensionable post of Controller of Examinations in the Office of the Public Services Commission.

Salary Scale.—R. 67, 73, i.e. NC3,468 x NC120-NC3,984; NC4,260; NC4,404; NC4,548; NC4,692; NC4,848.

Duties.—Responsible for all matters connected with the conduct of Public Service examinations. This includes liaison with Heads of Departments or Classes on the contents of syllabuses for promotion examinations as well as for examinations for direct entry into the Public Service, setting the standards for these examinations having regard to the standard of related examinations, arranging for the setting and security of examination papers and marking of worked scripts, collation and

Qualifications.—Candidates who must be citizens of Ghana must:—

- (a) hold a degree of a recognised University with a postgraduate qualification in education;
- (b) have had at least 5 years' postgraduate experience in education or in the conduct of public examinations; and

(c) have held a senior post either of Assistant Headmaster or Vice-Principal or its equivalent or above either in an educational institution or in the Ministry of Education or be officers of equal status in the office of the West African Examinations Council or similar organisation.

Preference will be given to candidates who have been responsible for the conduct of public examinations.

Application forms may be obtained from the Secretary, Public Services Commission, P.O. Box 1618, Accra, to whom they should be returned not later than 31st December, 1970. Civil Servants should apply through their Heads of Departments. Copies only of supporting documents should be sent. Persons under any form of bond are ineligible.

VOLTA RIVER AUTHORITY VACANCY FOR EXPEDITER/SHIPPING OFFICER

We require an Expediter/Shipping Officer for a 2-year contract appointment in December, 1970.

Qualification.—A certificate from a recognised Institute or School of Shipping.

Experience.—A minimum of 5 years' related post-qualification experience in a supervisory position. Knowledge of Exchange Control and Ghana Customs regulations is very essential.

Job Function.—Responsibility for all expediting and shipping duties in connection with the Akosombo Power Expansion Project to Togo and Dahomey.

Preferred Age Range.-28-40 years.

Salary.—NC2,250-NC3,600 per annum. (Entry point will be determined by qualification and experience.)

Method of Application.—Applications in duplicate with copies of certificates and testimonials should reach the Chief Executive, Volta River Authority, P.O. Box M.77, Accra not later than 21st November, 1970.

UNIVERSITY OF SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY, KUMASI—FACULTY OF SCIENCE VACANCIES FOR SENIOR LECTURER OR LECTURER IN BOTANY (PLANT PHYSIOLOGY) AND LECTURER/ASSISTANT LECTURER IN MICROBIOLOGY

Applications are invited for the following posts in the Department of Biological Sciences:-

- (a) 1 Senior Lecturer or Lecturer in Botany (Plant Physiology)
- (b) 1 Lecturer/Assistant Lecturer in Microbiology.

Qualifications.—Candidates for (a) must possess a good degree in Botany, with research experience or a higher degree in Plant Physiology or Plant Biochemistry. Those for (b) must possess a good degree in Agriculture or Botany or Biochemistry, with research experience or degree in Microbiology.

Salary (Under Review):

Senior Lecturer.—NØ4,500 x NØ180-NØ5,580 per annum.

Lecturer.—NØ2,720 x NØ120-NØ3,560/NØ3,740 x NØ180-NØ4,640; NØ4,800 per annum.

Assistant Lecturer.-NZ2,300; NZ2,400 per annum.

(Non-taxable Inducement Allowance payable to expatriates:

Senior Lecturer or Lecturer.—N@720 per annum.

Assistant Lecturer.-NØ450 per annum.)

In appropriate cases, a supplementation allowance in range £300-£800 per annum will be paid in sterling by the U.K. Ministry of Overseas Development which also provides Children's Education Allowances and holiday passages in addition to similar facilities granted by the University.

Appointments are normally for four or six years in the first instance, but a shorter period of secondment will be considered.

Application forms are obtainable from the Registrar, University of Science and Technology, Kumasi, Ghana or from the Assistant Registrar (U.S.T.), Universities of Ghana, 15 Gordon Square, London, W.C.1. The closing date for the return of completed application forms (seven copies) is 30th November, 1970.

UNIVERSITY OF SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY, KUMASI-FACULTY OF ART VACANCY FOR PROFESSOR/ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR

Applications are invited for the post of Professor/Associate Professor in one or more of the following subjects: Pottery/Ceramics, Textiles and Metal Products Design (Gold and Silversmithing, beaten metals, etc.)

The successful candidate will be required to head the Department of Industrial Art.

Qualifications.—Candidates must possess A.R.C.A., Dip.A.D., B.A. or equivalent, and must have extensive experience in teaching, research and/or industry and be capable administrators, able to initiate and supervise practical research.

Salary (Under Review):

Professor.—NØ6,400 per annum (Consolidated)

Associate Professor.—NØ6,000 per annum (Consolidated)

(plus non-taxable Inducement Allowance of NQ900 per annum payable to expatriates).

In appropriate cases, a supplementation allowance in range £952-£1,124 per annum will be paid in sterling by the U.K. Ministry of Overseas Development which also provides Children's Education Allowances and holiday passages in addition to similar facilities granted by the University.

Appointments are normally for four or six years in the first instance, but a shorter period of secondment will be considered.

Application forms are obtainable from the Registrar, University of Science and Technology, Kumasi, Ghana or from the Assistant Registrar (U.S.T.), Universities of Ghana, 15 Gordon Square, London, W.C.1. The closing date for the return of completed application forms (seven copies) is 30th November, 1970.

Option of the Company of the property of the same of t

A STANTON FOR A STANTANTA

DISTRIBUTION LIST OF OFFICERS IN THE ADMINISTRATIVE CLASS AS AT 1st NOVEMBER 1970

DISTRIBUTION LIST OF OFFICERS	THE ADMINISTRATIVE CLASS AS AT 1st NOVEMBER, 1970
Office of the President	N. A. Quao, Joe D. Laryea, K. Tete-Asiedu, F. Y. Kyei
Office of the Prime Minister	D. E. Awotwi, E. K. Minta, J. Obuobi, G. A. K. Bonsu, S. A. Marfo, J. A. Indome, J. T. K. Aggrey, T. K. Leighton, D. D. Mensah, H. D. Adu, K. A. Acquah, A. K. Adzam, K. Bentum-Eshun, I. B. Odro, B. B. D. Asamoah, D. A. Asante, N. K. Yempew, E. A. T. Opare-Aryee, C. A. Atiemo, A. K. Onyina-Mensah, K. Cfori-Amanfo, K. Amoakwa.
Office of Government Machinery	S. C. A. Chinery, J. E. K. A. Appiah, E. Hoyle, R. S. Acolatse, Miss C. Owusu-Kwarteng, Mrs. E. Forson, M. L. Dua
Organisation and Methods	J. N. K. Odamtten
Staff Inspection	Miss E. Owusu-Appiah
Pay Research Unit	E. K. Tutu
Establishment Secretariat	E. K. Katakity, J. D. Cobbina, Mrs. I. M. A. Wontumi, A. K. Nugent, E. Y. Katahena, C. S. Ayamka, R. Addo, G. H. P. Brown.
Training Division	J. D. Prah, W. K. Amuakwa.
Public Services Commission	G. B. Boahene, E. A. Sai, W. K. Djan, K. F. Okyere, D. A. Collison, R. Segbaya, J. Darko, K. Osei-Bobie, Gale Nyatefe.
Scholarships Secretariat	G. R. Beilson, A. R. K. Awitty
Ministry of Agriculture	J. W. Sraha, L. P. Tosu, G. E. Sam, S. K. Abbequaye, J. G. Benneh,
	E. K. W. Ananc-Tabury, J. B. Amissah, G. C. Hagan, Miss Sarah
Ministry of Defence	J. B. Odunton, E. E. A. Brew, E. O. Allotey, J. A. A. Ofori, F. W. Y. Agboklu.
Ministry of Education, Culture and Sports	F. W. Beecham, S. N. Newton
Cultural Division	J. A. Mensah, G. K. Avah
National Council for Higher Education	G. T. Oddoye, J. E. Nsaful, A. B. Naah
Ministry of Foreign Affairs	E. O. Vanderpuje
Ministry of Health	N. K. F. Owoo, J. V. Amarquaye, K. Kisiedu, Mrs. Rebecca Koramoa, Miss F. Hanson, K. N. Sackey.

Ministry of Finance of			ning		
1. Administratio	n: Financ	e	2.06	.0.0	M. A. Akycampong, J. K. Yankson, G. Owusu, S. A. Sowah, D. K. A.
2 Control Descri	-1.				Antwi, E. I. Faibille, B. A. Allotey-Babington.
2. Control Brane					S. E. Grant, M. Q. Clcland, Mrs. E. A. Harlley, Miss Constance Caesar, V. H. K. Amelor, J. H. Newman, Samuel Sem.
3. Budget Burea	u		* *		Dr. Amon-Nikoi, J. H. K. Folson, G. K. Sackey, R. S. Aggrey, N. V. Dzisam, S. Owusu-Agyei, F. Q. Amegah, E. E. Ackah-Yankey.
4. Economic Pla	nning				B. K. Mensah, S. B. Jones, S. Y. N. Zanu
5. External Aid	Division				H. P. Nelson, E. F. A. Brown
Ministry of Informati	ion				E. A. B. Mayne, V. O. Nortey
Ministry of Interior					C. B. A. Mate-Kole, J. Y. Tetteh, E. A. Kwarteng, S. N. Nettey
Attorney-General's D	epartmen				J. A. Nkrumah
Ministry of Labour a	_		.= ,		S. K. Aryee, M. Addai, Mrs. V. Owusu
Ministry of Lands an					A. J. Prah, R. Coke, B. L. Laryea
Forestry Division		1 Tespare			R. K. Johnson, R. T. Ampofo
The second second		OF	• •		J. K. Chinebuah, J. W. Osae-Kwapong, A. A. Sarpong, A. D. Darkwa
Ministry of Local Ad	mmstratt	OII.	• •	• •	C. W. O. Sackeyfio, M. E. Sam, J. E. Pessey, C. K. Anoff, A. M.
Ministry of Works			4,35	Cor to	Quaye, E. F. Darkwa.
Ministry of Housing	and Town	Planning	3	٠٠,	S. K. Quartey, O. P. Kwami, B. K. Armah, Mrs. V. Ribeiro, V. K. Setrena.
Ministry of Youth an	d Rural I	Dev e lopm	ent		A. K. Asem, Q. K. K. Bruce, J. A. Ankrah, J. K. Bapuuroh
Ministry of Trade, In					
Trade Division			,,		R. K. O. Djan
Industry Division					T. R. D. Addai, W. T. Dove, Mrs. A. Amekudzi
mada, Divisio					
				ASI	HANTI REGION
Regional Office			٠.	••	P. E. Pentsil, M. Amadu-Suka, J. S. Brew, J. A. Otoo, A. K. M. Djentuh
Kumasi District		••			W. B. Dadzie, S. W. K. Buami J. S. Dalrymple-Hayfron
Bekwai District		••			W. Association
Obuasi District					D. W. K. Arthur-Tay
Teppa District Juaso District					F. O. Mensah-Kantanka
Offinso District					B. E. Laing, A. N. K. Amoako
Mampong District					A. A. K. Ofori
Manufacture and a second					
and the state of			high	Bro	ong-Ahafo Region
n daniel Office					B. K. Otoo, M. B. Keelson, E. J. P. Brown, F. Garbrah-Sampeney
Regional Office Sunyani District					S. V. Agyare-Forifi
Wenchi District					A. K. Owcreko
Attebubu District					J. K. Akowuah
Dormaa Ahenkro Di					W. W. Atiegar
Goaso District					E. C. Kotey
14	- N / 10 A	india.	- 45	Cri	NTRAL REGION
					TI M Dude D Dancel P N Nortey Compson Adiei A W Nakaar
Regional Office .					D. D. Lartey
Cape Coast District					Tr. Ohana Adafa
Dunkwa District .			,		J. K. Bebaako-Mensah
Winneha District .					K. B. Eduful
Saltpond District .					

742				GHAN.	A GAZETTE, 13th NOVEMBER, 1970
					EASTERN REGION
Regional Office					E. P. O. Kwafo, G. G. Mortey, E. A. Boateng, F. Osei-Bonsu, P. E. A. Baah.
Koforidua District					. A. Okyere-Twum
Kibi District					K. G. Asimenu
Oda District		.+ .		+	W. K. Alomatu
Mpraeso District					
Akosombo District			17. 1		J. K. G. Gyimah
Ada District			+ .		B. K. Abban
Asamankese Distri	ict				G. M. Osei
					GREATER ACCRA REGION
Regiona! Office		12			C. A. Darku, Mrs. F. Sosu, S. K. Kotei
Accra District					F. D. Laryea, D. Abebreseh
Tema District		**			M. Akoto-Sasu
Ga-Shai District	• •				T. N. Quaye
					Western Region
Regional Office					A. A. Ampofo, C. Garbrah-Aidoo, K. A. Eyeson, D. C. K. Gyabaah
Sekondi-Takoradi .	Distric	7			M. K. Homiah
Sefwi Wiawso Dist	rict				J. D. Amissah-Arthur
Amenfi District					M. K. Williams
Tarkwa District					
Axim District					W. T. G. Benisa
Bibiani District					. A. K. Sarpong
Enchi District					
					Volta Region
Regional Office		**			C. C. Y. Onny, T. K. Abankwa-Duodu, A. K. Otchere, P. B. M. Arycetey, E. Amadi-Atta.
Ho District					M. D. Missinou
Keta District					S. G. Okraku, T. A. Azupiu
Kpandu District			**		D. M. Darker
Jasikan District			**	••	
Sogakofe District				* •	T. K. D. Kumaku
Kete-Krachi Distric					V A Tamella
		* .			K. A. Tamakioe
					Northern Region
Kegional Office					K. C. Y. Anakwa, P. F. Lartey, J. K. Owusu, J. B. Ali, K. Opoku-Manu, F. A. Ben-Eghan.
Yendi District					E. Osei-Kofi, E. K. Anto
Gambaga District					C. K. Amanfu
Salaga District					R. A. Karbo

				F. A. Ben-Eghan.
Yendi District		 	 	E. Osei-Kofi, E. K. Anto
Gambaga District		 + 1	 	C. K. Amanfu
Salaga District		 	 	R. A. Karbo
Tamale District		 	 	S. D. K. Kportufe
Damongo District	• •	 	 	B S. Hamidu

UPPER REGION

			O.	FFER REGION
		+ -		J. K. A. Darfoor, I. B. Ashun, L. D. Luri, S. Yakubu
	 			D, D. Obiri
ct				E. A. Owusu-Ansah
	 Nv.			Sam Darkwa

LOCAL AUTHORITIES

Accra-Tema City Council			G. L. K. M. Markwei
On Secondment	**	••	E. A. Winful (G.I.M.P.A.), J. Nti (G.I.M.P.A.), K. Gyasi-Twum (Ghana Commercial Bank), M. A Bentii (G.I.M.P.A.), S. Kumi-Agyare (V.R.A.), Nana Kow-Bondzie (Ghana Museum and Monuments Board), A. R. B. Braimah (University of Ghana), J. D. Pobee (Electoral Commission).
On Course		-	S. E. Arthur, G. N. Nutsugah, M. Abboah-Offei, P. Amoah-Ntim.

According to the Coursession of the Coursession